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Chairman’s Statement

Cheung Wah KeungCheung Wah KeungCheung Wah KeungCheung Wah KeungCheung Wah Keung
Chairman of the Board

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Shinhint Acoustic Link

Holdings Limited (hereafter the “Group”), I am pleased to present the audited

annual results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2006.

RESULTS
Despite of the challenges confronted by the industry in 2006, our performance

during the past year can be regarded as highly encouraging. For the review

period, the Group achieved turnover of HK$1,174,157,000, up from

HK$1,016,198,000 recorded in 2005, representing a rise of 15.5% year on year.

Net profit likewise increased by 10.8% to HK$50,329,000 from HK$45,432,000.

Taking into consideration the Group’s sound state of financial health, the Board has recommended the payment of

a final dividend of HK cents 3.8 per share, thus making the total dividend for 2006 at HK cents 5.3 per share. The

Group achieved a per share dividend payout ratio of approximately 31.2% for the year.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT HIGHLIGHTS
The pace of adoption of digital technology around the world remains intense and this has directly benefited the

electro-acoustic peripheral industry. However, with consumers’ ever more sophisticated tastes, products must

possess a combination of attributes such as portability, durability and stylishness, and even impart a sense of

individuality. Cognizant of this trend, the Group has worked closely with international brands to co-develop products

that are in direct response to consumers’ dictates, and have duly reaped the benefits of such endeavors.

Still, with an industry that is best characterized as constantly evolving, research and development remain the backbone

of our Group. Consequently, we have continued to attract engineers, seasoned in product design and development,

to bolster our R&D team. Concurrently, we have sought to broaden our product offerings while facilitating greater

cross-device application. Proving that such efforts have not been misguided, our emphasis on investing in R&D,

particularly on wireless devices, was pivotal in helping the Group improve its business performance during the year.

Turning ideas into reality has been our 72 production lines which were able to raise capacity, rising by 20%, as a

result of new equipment purchased from Europe during the review period as well as implementation of enhancement

initiatives. Building on such efforts, we will be expanding production of speaker drivers and have already established

a wholly-owned foreign investment in ChangAn Town, Dongguan. Dong Guan Shinhint Audio Technology Limited

will be dedicated to manufacturing speakers for the automotive and flat-panel high-fidelity segments, among others,

once its new factory becomes fully online in mid-2007.

Though our objective of meeting the needs of our customers is paramount, we are also aware that corporate social

responsibility should be an integral element of our corporate culture. Accordingly, we have been fully compliant

with the Restriction of Hazardous Substances (RoHS) Directive of the European Union since January 2006, and will

continue to incorporate RoHS guidelines into our business practices.
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PROSPECTS
Moving forward, the Group subscribes to the opinion that the electro-acoustic peripheral market will remain bullish,

an optimism fuelled by the global shift towards digital broadcasting technology, dominance of the Internet as well

as growing popularity of Wi-Fi. The trend of mobile phones that doubles as personal stereo units is also a factor not

to be ignored. Just as significant, LCD and plasma TVs that are becoming thinner; represents yet another development

that will create fresh opportunities for Shinhint.

To take advantage of all of these prospects, we have not only dedicated greater energies on research and development

but continued to foster partnerships with industry leaders that help enhance our capabilities, including the ability to

quickly adapt to the latest technologies, pursue new business opportunities as arise from the rapidly evolving digital

world.

Coordinating our technical, production and manufacturing prowess is an expanded management team that now

boasts even greater depth and breadth of experience. Through their efforts, concise strategies have been formulated

which will help the Group realize its expansionary efforts across the American, Asian and European markets.

Having not only planned but executed various programs that have fortified our lead position in the electro-acoustic

peripheral industry, we remain confident in the ability to enhance our revenue streams and profitability in the

coming years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to extend my gratitude to our business partners, customers and

shareholders for their continuous support. The dedication of the management team and diligence of all staff members

should also be lauded. While having maintained encouraging growth momentum over the year, we look forward to

surpassing our past successes and realizing even greater returns for our shareholders in the period ahead.

Cheung Wah Keung

Chairman of the Board

26th April, 2007



5Shinhint Acoustic Link Holdings Limited  •      Annual Report 2006

Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW
The demand for high quality electro-acoustic peripheral products continue to be high, the direct result of consumers’

insatiable desire for the latest communication, entertainment and multimedia products, i.e. compressed music

players, personal computers, gaming consoles, LCD TVs and mobile phones. The ongoing permeation of the Internet

and Wi-Fi into people’s daily lives has also meant a need for products that encompass a wide range of features,

providing fresh impetus for multifunctional devices and the cross application of multimedia electronics. Though the

demand for state-of-the-art digital technology remains robust, mainstream electro-acoustic peripherals such as

Bluetooth headsets are enjoying renewed favor as well, the direct result of growing legislation to curb motorists

from using mobile phones. As a result of these factors, the electro-acoustic peripheral segment expanded across

various vectors and this evolution looks set to continue unabated.

BUSINESS REVIEW
During the past year, Shinhint continued to affirm its status as a premier manufacturer of electro acoustic peripheral

products, strengthening ties with some of the world’s leading consumer electronic brands while at the same time

forging new alliances with established companies from the United States, Europe and Asia. Such associations are

indicative of the Group’s solid reputation for developing and producing a full breadth of lifestyle oriented electronic

components that are of the highest caliber in terms of quality and performance.

To continue nurturing such bonds and further the Group’s reputation, Shinhint expanded its management team,

enlisting those most capable of providing new insights, perspectives and methodologies. The ultimate purpose of

enlarging this important nucleus has been to ensure that Shinhint is operated with utmost professionalism and

efficiency from the top down.

Consistent with Shinhint’s status as both an original design and original equipment manufacturer with electronic,

acoustic and mechanical engineering expertise, the Group continued to strengthen its R&D capabilities through the

hiring of skilled technicians while at the same time seeking to ally with those companies that can enrich its product

offerings be it in technically, aesthetical or in other key aspects. A good example of such allegiances is its strategic

partnership with New Transducers Ltd (“NXT”), a leader in flat-panel loudspeaker technology, which was secured

in mid-2006. In addition to capitalizing on NXT’s technical prowess, the two parties will cooperate in the creation of

a new business that mainly targets the flat-panel acoustic sector. A new factory will be established in Dongguan

which, in addition to catering to developing and manufacturing speakers for the LCD and Plasma TV industry, will

also seek to tap other segments including the automotive sector.

Accordingly, for the year under review, Shinhint achieved a turnover growth of 15.5% to HK$1,174,157,000 (2005:

HK$1,016,198,000).
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In terms of production, the Group was able to raise capacity by approximately 20% due to the introduction of

enhancement initiatives as well as investing in more advanced equipments which were integrated into the production

lines. The former had the benefit of meeting evermore stringent quality standards while the latter enabled the

Group to mitigate negative pressures arising from rising labor costs and scarcity of skilled workers, and just as

important, be equiped to produce the most advanced products where intricate production processes are requisite.

Moreover, with vertically integrated manufacturing facilities in place, Shinhint is thus able to better accommodate

increase sales orders and expansion of sales channels as they arise.

Communication Peripheral Business

A key facet of the Group’s makeup, the communication peripheral business comprises of complementary products

used in combination with mobile phones, line phones and Internet phones, among others. During the review period,

a turnover of HK$169,420,000 was achieved, representing a rise of 4.4% or HK$7,173,000 in dollar terms year on

year. Furthermore, segment result continued to be buoyant, recorded at 8.3% (2005: 7.0%).

Management expects mobile phones and Internet phony will have further scope for expansion and this in turn will

help propel demand for supporting peripherals, specifically, digital wireless application products. Furthermore,

with stricter legislation requiring motorists to adopt hands free communication devices (wireless technology/

headsets), still greater business growth from this area is projected. In view of such developments, the Group will

allocate more resources toward R&D, seeking to capture the available opportunities ahead.

Entertainment Peripheral Business

With consumer outlook remaining positive on the European and American fronts, the leisure segment of the consumer

electronics industry was duly upbeat. This had an expectedly favorable impact on the entertainment peripheral

business as more consumers opted for high-performance electro-acoustic accessories, driving sales up by 23.8%

to HK$357,877,000 – accounting for 30.5% of total turnover of the Group. In turn, segment result rose to HK$19,498,000

from HK$18,882,000. As this sector continues to rapidly develop, the Group will seek to consolidate relations with

leaders in the consumer electronics industry, capitalizing on their understanding of business trends and constantly

upgrading itself with the necessary skill sets for tapping this lucrative market.

Multimedia Peripheral Business

Continuing to represent the key revenue driver of the Group, the multimedia peripheral business comprises of

accessories that are used in conjunction with popular digital consumer electronics. Spurred by the public’s obsession

for digital music and reliance on the Internet, the Group’s multimedia peripheral products enjoyed positive consumer

sentiment and achieved solid sales growth, consequently realizing turnover of HK$515,588,000, a rise of 17.0%.

Accordingly, the segment result of this business increased to HK$27,979,000 from HK$24,464,000 and accounted

for 43.9% of the Group’s total revenue. This segment will continue to be among the growth drivers for the Group in

the future.
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Audio Peripheral Business and Other Accessories

The nature of the audio peripheral and accessories business is characterized as intensely competitive, the Group’s

sales in these segment increased fractionally and recording turnover of HK$131,272,000, an increase of 5.8%,

compare to last corresponding year. Having disposed of interests in an associate during the year, this segment will

remain as supplementary to the Group’s business.

Customers

The Group’s key focus continues to be in providing comprehensive product creation services both on OEM as well as

ODM basic to leading players of the multimedia product industry. Working in concert with these customers, the

Group has been able to keep abreast of the latest trends, identifying potential market opportunities from which new

products are developed.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results Performance

For the year ended 31st December, 2006, the Group’s turnover increased by 15.5% from that of the previous year,

reaching HK$1,174,157,000 (2005: HK$1,016,198,000). This increase was mainly attributed to the sales increase in

North America and Europe. Net profit likewise increased by 10.8% to HK$50,329,000 from HK$45,432,000.

During the year, basic earnings per share approximately maintained at HK cents 17. The board of directors

recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK cents 3.8 per share for the year ended 31st December, 2006.

Together with the interim dividend of HK cents 1.5 per share, total dividends for the year amounted to HK cents 5.3.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st December, 2006, the Group maintained a healthy cash level with cash and cash equivalents of

HK$117,013,000 (2005: HK$71,736,000) and unutilized banking facilities of HK$52,553,000 (2005: HK$9,043,000).

The Group’s current ratio, being the proportion of total current assets against total current liabilities, was 1.52

compared with 1.39 in 2005.

Meanwhile, the gearing ratio of the Group decreased to 16.6% from 20.4% as at 31st December, 2006. The ratio was

calculated by dividing total borrowings of HK$43,447,000 (2005: HK$45,957,000) by shareholders’ equity of

HK$262,387,000 (2005: HK$224,809,000).

As at 31st December, 2006, the Group’s inventories decreased to HK$135,363,000 (2005: HK$173,492,000). The

inventory decrease was the result of the Group’s achievements in enhancing inventory management.
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Treasury Policies

The Group does not engage in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative products. Since the Group’s sales and

raw material purchases are conducted in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars, the Board believes that the Group will

have sufficient foreign exchange reserves to match necessary requirements. Although part of manufacturing overhead

is denominated in Renminbi, the Group’s exposure to risk associated with its exchange is not significant. Still, the

Group will closely monitor the movement of the Renminbi exchange rate. During the year, the Group did not use any

financial instruments for the purpose of hedging.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December, 2006, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

Pledge on the Group’s Assets

As at 31st December, 2006, bank deposits of HK$4,452,000 (2005: HK$9,877,000) had been pledged to secure the

Group’s banking facilities.

PROSPECTS
As the electro-acoustic peripheral industry advances on various fronts, the ability to remain pliant to change will be

paramount – such is the aim of the Group.

The Group has shown that it is fully committed to the electro-acoustic peripheral industry, and in particular, the

four segments that it is engaged in. New investments in infrastructure, including a factory in ChangAn Town,

Dongguan, which is dedicated to the production of speakers for the flat-panel TV and automotive sectors amongst

other audio products, will be fully operational by mid-2007. To expedite product development and quickly address

the latest consumer trends, the Group has continued to strengthen its research and development capabilities by

maintaining its practice of recruiting talented engineers and working closely with industry leaders. Moreover, to

fortify relations with core clients, the Group has sought to strengthen its presence in China with the goal of serving

as an ambassador on their behalf. Towards this objective, Shinhint has promptly fulfilled industry standards set out

by the China Quality Center. With the vast potential of the PRC market yet to be realized, Shinhint’s early compliance

will stand it in good stead as opportunities develop.

The Group is committed to maintaining mutually fruitful ties with industry leaders and harnessing the synergies

created to enhance growth. Consequently, Shinhint will continue to utilize its Shenzhen research center to drive the

product creation process, and will consider the possibility of forming partnerships with other enterprises to access

necessary technologies towards this end. Moreover, opportunities for acquisitions which can further strengthen

Shinhint’s position in the industry, and ultimately, improve long term returns for shareholders will be explored.
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EMPLOYEES
As at 31st December, 2006, the Group’s work force totaled approximately 4,300 (2005: approximately 4,300) in Hong

Kong and the PRC collectively. Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately

HK$79,670,000 (2005: HK$65,942,000). The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive and

according to market trends. Its employees are rewarded on a performance related basis and within the general

framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
During the year under review, there was no purchase, sale or redemption of shares of the Company by the Company

or any of its subsidiaries. However, after the year end date, on 10th April, 2007, a net proceed of HK$19.99 million

was raised from a top-up shares subscription of the Company, which was intended to be used as general working

capital of the Company. The shareholders base of the Group has been widened with the addition of China Development

Capital Partnership Master Fund LP and General Motors Investment Management Corporation who each holds

6.29% stake in the Group’s enlarged share capital.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and management of Shinhint are committed to maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance and have put in place self regulatory corporate practices to protect the interests of its

shareholders and the enhancement of shareholder value. Our commitment in terms of corporate governance is to

provide high-quality products and services to the satisfaction of our customers; maintain high standards of business

ethics and achieve these goals while, at the same time, providing satisfactory and sustainable returns to shareholders.

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) acts in a socially responsible manner through a variety

of initiatives and sees this as part of its overall commitment to good corporate governance.

Shinhint has a Corporate Code of Conduct that sets out principles, values and standards of conduct expected of

management and staff throughout the Group, and underpins our operating procedures and policies.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st December, 2006 and up to the date of publication of this annual

report, applied and complied with the principles in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) set

out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviation as stated in paragraph headed Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of the Company consists of six members, including three Executive Directors, Mr. Cheung Wah Keung,

Mr. Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest and Mr. Wang Dong; and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Lai Ming,

Joseph, Dr. Lam King Sun, Frankie and Mr. Goh Gen Cheung. Save as disclosed, there is no business or other

relationship amongst members of the Board.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

The Directors have extensive corporate and strategic planning experience and industry knowledge. All Independent

Non-Executive Directors have offered sufficient time and efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company. They

also possess appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related management experience and have

contributed to the Board with their professional opinion. The Board believes that the ratio between Executive Directors

and Independent Non-Executive Directors is reasonable and adequate. The Board also believes that the participation

of Independent Non-Executive Directors shall offer their independent judgment on issues relating to strategy,

performance, conflict of interest and management process such that the interests of all shareholders and the

Group are considered and safeguarded.

All directors of the Company have access to timely information in relation to the Group’s business and make further

enquires when necessary. The Board has also agreed that directors may seek independent professional advice on

issues related to the Group’s business at the Company’s expenses. The Board is fully responsible for the formulation

of business policies and strategies in relation to the business operation of the Group, ensures the availability of

resources as well as the effectiveness of its internal control including financial control.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal

actions against directors, officers and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Pursuant to the requirement of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three Independent Non-

Executive Directors, one of whom has appropriate professional qualification in accounting and financial management

expertise. All Independent Non-Executive Directors have confirmed their independence, as set out in Rule 3.13 of

the Listing Rules, to the Company and the Board considers that all Independent Non-Executive Directors have

satisfied their independence of the Group up to the date of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and Chief Executive

Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities

between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Cheung Wah Keung is the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company.

Given the Group’s current stage of development, the Board considers that vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer in the same person facilitates the execution of the Group’s business strategies and maximizes

effectiveness of its operations. The Board considers that further separation of the roles of Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer is not necessary for the time being. The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time to

time and shall consider the appropriate adjustment should suitable citcumstance arise.

BOARD MEETING
The Board meets at least four times each year. Additional meetings may be convened as and when necessary.

During the meetings of the Board, Directors discussed and formulated the business policies and strategies, corporate

governance, financial and internal control systems, reviewed the interim and final business results and other relevant

important matters. The Directors had participated in the Board meetings as indicated below. For those Directors

who could not attend these meetings in person, they participated through electronic media. Implementation and

execution of Board policies and strategies and daily administrative matters are delegated to the management of the

Company.

The notice of Board meeting will be given to all Directors at least 14 days prior to the date of the meeting. All

Directors are given opportunities to include any matters to be discussed in the agenda for discussion at the Board

meetings.
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BOARD MEETING (Continued)
The Company Secretary must ensure that all applicable rules and regulations are followed and prepare detailed

minutes of each meeting. After the meeting, the draft minutes of the meeting shall be circulated to all Directors for

comments and approval as soon as practicable. All Board members shall be given a copy of the minutes for their

record. Should a matter being considered which involve a potential conflict of interest of a Director, the Director

involved in the transaction will be requested to leave the boardroom and abstain from voting. The matter will be

discussed and resolved by other Directors.

During the year, the number of meetings held and attended by the members is as follows:

Meetings Attended

Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

Number of Meetings Held During the Year 4 2 2

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wah Keung 4 2 2

Mr. Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest 4 N/A N/A

Mr. Wang Dong 3 N/A N/A

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Ming, Joseph (Note) 4 2 1

Dr. Lam King Sun, Frankie 4 2 2

Mr. Goh Gen Cheung 4 2 2

Note: Appointed as member of Remuneration Committee 15 September 2006

Board committees including Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee all follow the applicable principle,

practice and procedures used in the Board meeting.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION
All Directors have access to Board and Committees’ papers and other material either from the Company Secretary

or the Chairman so that they are able to make informed decisions on matters placed before them.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
The Company does not have a nomination committee.

The Board regularly reviews its structure, size and composition. The Company adopts a formal and transparent

procedure for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The appointment of a new Director is a collective

decision of the Board, taking into consideration the expertise, experience and integrity of that appointee.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Each Director shall, after his appointment, disclose to the Board the number and nature of offices held by such

Director in other listed companies and organizations and any other significant commitments.

DIRECTORS TERMS OF APPOINTMENT
All Directors, including Independent Non-Executive Directors, are appointed for a term of three years. All Directors

retire from their office by rotation and subject to re-election at an Annual General Meeting at least once every three

year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted codes of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors and relevant employees

(the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. A copy

of the Securities Code is sent to each Director and relevant employee of the Company first on his appointment and

thereafter twice annually, one month before the date of the board meeting to approve the Company’s half-year

result and annual result, with a reminder that the Director and relevant employee cannot deal in the securities and

derivatives of the Company until after such results have been published.

Under the Securities Code, Directors and relevant employees of the Company are required to notify the Chairman

and receive a dated written acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and derivatives of the Company and,

in the case of the Chairman himself, he must notify the Chairman of the Audit Committee and receive a dated

written acknowledgement before any dealing.

On specific enquiries made, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standards

set out in the Securities Code for the period covered by the annual report.

CONTROL MECHANISMS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a sound and effective internal control system for the

Group to safeguard investments of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board

requires management to establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls. Evaluation of the Company’s

internal controls is independently conducted by the Management on an on-going basis.

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company and its

subsidiaries and that they consider such system to be reasonably effective and adequate. The review covered all

material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
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AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)
The Company is in the process of setting up internal audit function which is responsible for the review and assessment

of the operational activities and internal control of the Company including the conduct of operational audits on

practices, procedures, financial control and risk management. The internal audit function, once established, will

maintain a close working relationship with the external auditors and report directly to the Audit Committee

periodically.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities for corporate governance, financial reporting

and corporate control. The Committee consists of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai

Ming, Joseph, Dr. Lam King Sun, Frankie and Mr. Goh Gen Cheung. It is chaired by Mr. Lai Ming, Joseph, who has

the appropriate professional accounting qualification and financial management expertise.

Regular attendees at the Audit Committee meetings include the Head of Finance and the external auditors. The

Committee meets with the external auditors without the presence of company management. The terms of reference

of the Audit Committee follow the CG Code.

The Audit Committee met two times in 2006 with an attendance rate of 100%. Each meeting received written reports

from the external auditors that deal with matters of significance arising from the work conducted since the previous

meeting. During 2006, the work performed by the Audit Committee included:

• the review of significant audit and accounting issues arising from the external auditors’ audit;

• meeting with the external auditors without the presence of management to discuss issues arising from the

audits and any other matters the auditors might wish to raise;

• reviewing the Company’s compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements;

• the Group’s risk management processes; and

• developments in accounting standards and the Group’s response, including the preparation for adoption of

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Audit Committee assesses the independence of the external auditors during the year through a series of questions

and the external auditors also formally communicate to the Audit Committee their business relationship with the

Group and any other independence matters. The annual results for the year ended 31st December, 2006 have been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee comprises Three Independent Non-Executive Directors - Dr. Lam King Sun, Frankie

and Mr. Lai Ming, Joseph and Mr. Goh Gen Cheung and one Executive Director - Mr. Cheung Wah Keung, who was

appointed as the Chairman of the committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

1. The Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all

remuneration of directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent

procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

2. The Committee shall exercise the powers of the Board to determine:

(A) the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management, (including

salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind and the terms on which they participate in any share or other

incentive scheme and any provident fund or other retirement benefit scheme) taking into consideration

factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the

Directors and senior management, employment conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability of

performance-based remuneration; and

(B) the terms and conditions on which the employment of any Executive Director or senior management

shall be terminated to ensure that any compensation payment is determined in accordance with

relevant contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the

Company.

3. The Committee shall review and approve:

(A) performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the

Board from time to time; and

(B) compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure

that such arrangements are determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms and that any

compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

4. The Committee shall make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of Independent Non-Executive

Directors.

5. The Committee should ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own

remuneration.

6. The Committee shall report to the Directors of the Company its activities as the Directors may require from

time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)
7. The Committee shall exercise such other powers, authorities and discretions, and perform such other duties,

of the Directors in relation to the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior management as the

Directors may from time to time delegate to it, having regard to the CG Code of the Listing Rules.

8. In exercising its power, authorities and discretions and performing its duties, the Committee shall take full

account of the CG Code and the Listing Rules.

In order to be able to attract and retain staff of suitable calibre, the Group provides a competitive remuneration

package. This comprises salary, housing and provident fund. Although the remuneration of these executives is not

entirely linked to the profits of the company or division in which they are working, it is considered that, given the

volatility of various businesses within the Group, this has contributed considerably to the maintenance of a stable,

motivated and high-calibre senior management team in the Company. The Remuneration Committee met twice in

the Year, with all committee members attended the meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements of the Company for

the year ended 31st December, 2006 and ensure that they are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements

and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of such financial statements.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, with regard to their

reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements, is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on

page 29.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware

of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cause the Company not to continue as a

going concern.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31st December, 2006, services provided to the Company by its external auditors, Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu, and the respective fees paid were:

2006 2005

Audit services 1,300,000 1,160,000

Other non-audit services 361,000 348,000

The auditor’s reporting responsibility is set out on page 29 of this annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in building successful relationships with its

shareholders.

The Company always seeks to provide relevant information to current and potential investors, not only to comply

with the different requirements in force but also to enhance transparency and communications with shareholders

and the investing public. This is part of a continuous communication program that encompasses meetings and

announcements to the market as well as periodic written reports in the form of preliminary announcement of

results and interim and annual reports. Extensive information on the Group’s activities, business strategies and

developments is provided in the Company’s annual reports and interim reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which comprehensive information about the Group is provided.

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and communication with its investors. Regular

meetings are also held with institutional investors and research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the

Group’s latest business developments and non-price sensitive information. These activities keep the public informed

of the Groups activities and foster effective communications.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully compliant with disclosure obligations stipulated under the

Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have an

equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information that is released by the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS IN SHARES
Save as disclosed in “Substantial shareholders” and so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors

of the Company are aware, as at 31st December, 2006, no other person (other than a Director, Senior Officer or

Supervisor of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares (as the

case may be) which are required to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or which was recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed in “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares and underlying shares” so far as the

Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31st December, 2006, none of

the Directors, the Senior Officers or the Supervisors of the Company had any interest or short position in the

shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(as defined in Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the Company and The SEHK pursuant to

Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short position which any such Director, Senior Officer

or Supervisor is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) of which was required to be entered in

the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required

to be notified to the Company and SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Companies as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the

percentage of its public float exceeds 25% at 31st December, 2006.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wah Keung, aged 46, has been a Director of the Group since August 1992 and was appointed Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the overall strategic and corporate planning,

business development and management of the Group. He obtained a Bachelor degree of Business Administration

from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and has over 15 years of experience in management of trading and

manufacture of consumer electronic products.

Mr. Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest, aged 48, has been a Director of the Company since May 2005. He joined Crown Million

Industries (International) Limited in December 2004 and is responsible for the operation of the Company. Prior to

joining the Group, he worked in Nestle Group for 17 years covering functions such as strategic as well as operational

management functions. Mr. Ip graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s and a Masters

degree in Business Administration in December 1981 and October 1989 respectively.

Mr. Wang Dong, aged 48, has been a Director of the Company since May 2005. Mr. Wang is responsible for

procurement, production, quality control and warehousing management of the Group. Mr. Wang joined Guangzhou

Guoguang-Shinhint Electronic Co. Ltd. for 5 years since August 1997 where he was responsible for production. Mr.

Wang subsequently worked at Tai Sing Industrial Company Limited for approximately 4 years since December 2001

being responsible for production. Mr. Wang obtained a Diploma in physics from Huazhong Normal University, the

PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LAI Ming, Joseph, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company in June, 2005.

Mr. Lai is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA“), CPA Australia

and the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (“CIMA”) and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He co-

founded the HK Centre of CIMA (then known as the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants) in 1973 and was

the president in 1974/75 and 1979/80. He was the president of the HKICPA in 1986 and is currently a member of the

Investigation Panel. He is also an adviser to the Corporate Governance Committee of CPA Australia Hong Kong

China Division.

Until retirement in 2004, Mr. Lai served several Hong Kong listed companies in key management positions with

particular emphasis on corporate finance and organization and management information. He is an independent

non-executive director of Jolimark Holdings Limited, Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited, Guangzhou R&F Properties

Co., Limited and Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, all of which are companies whose shares are listed on

the Stock Exchange of HK Ltd. He was also a non-executive director of Synergis Holdings Ltd. until August 2005 and

an independent non-executive director of SNP Leefung Holdings Limited until its privatisation in September 2006.

Mr. Lai is also a founding member and a director of Opera H.K. Ltd. and a director of the Research and Development

Corporation Limited of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Lam King Sun, Frankie, aged 46, appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in June

2005. With over 20 years of experience in human resources and general management. Dr. Lam earned his Ph. D.

degree and Master of Science degree from Purdue University in the USA in August 1986 and December 1985

respectively, and Bachelor and Master of Arts degrees from the University of North Texas in December 1982 and

August 1983 respectively. Dr. Lam is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Director, and a Fellow of the Hong Kong

Institute of Human Resource Management.

Mr. Goh Gen Cheung, aged 60, appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in June 2005.

Mr. Goh has over 30 years of experience in the field of treasury, finance and banking in Hong Kong and the Asia

Pacific Region. Mr. Goh is an associate member of the Institute of Bankers and obtained a Master’s degree in

Business Administration from the University of East Asia in Macau in February 1987.

Mr. Goh is an independent non-executive director of Peaktop International Holdings Limited, Karce International

Holdings Company Limited, CEL International Holdings Limited and China Flovors and Fragrances Company Limited,

all of which are companies whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of HK Limited. He was also an independent

non-executive director of China Photar Electronics Group Limited and Sun East Technology (Holdings) Limited and

resigned on 15th January, 2004 and 20th May, 2005 respectively.

Senior Management

Dr. Ching Boon Huat, aged 46, joined the Group in July 2006 and is the Chief Operation Officer of Shinhint. He is

responsible for overseeing the manufacturing operation of the Group. Dr Ching earned his Doctor degree of Business

Administration from University of South Australia in 2004, and Master degree of Business Administration from

University Science of Malaysia in 1995. Prior to joining the Group, Dr Ching worked in Sharp Corporation for 19

years in material and operation management functions for manufacturing of audio-visual products in Malaysia.

Mr. Fan Kai Yiu, aged 43, joined the Group in May 2000 and is the director of business development of Shinhint. Mr.

Fan has been responsible for the sales and marketing functions of the Group. Mr. Fan received a Bachelor of Arts

degree in English Literature from Chu Hai College in Hong Kong in January 1987 and a graduate certificate in

Marketing from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia in November 1999.

Mr. Tang Chung Hong, Philip, aged 46, joined the Group in July 1996 and is the director of supply chain and sales

management of Shinhint. Mr. Tang is responsible for sourcing of raw materials and management of purchase

orders in support of the sales and marketing division of the Group.

Mr. Leung Chi Keung, Frederick, aged 46, joined the Group in September 1995 and is the director of plastics

production of Shinhint. Mr. Leung is responsible for overseeing the production management of plastic parts for the

Group. Mr. Leung has approximately 10 years of experience in production management. Mr. Leung obtained a

Bachelor of Business (Business Administration) degree from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia

in December 2002.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Kwan Tsz Bun, aged 52, is the deputy general manger of Shinhint. Mr. Kwan is responsible for overseeing the

production of plastics and moulds. Prior to joining the Group in November 1996, Mr. Kwan has worked as an engineer

for plastic products in Electronic Industry Limited (a subsidiary of General Electric Company) for approximately

seven years.

Mr. Wei Shi Xiong, aged 66, joined the Group as the chief engineer in Shinhint in October 2004 and has been

responsible for the development of consumer electronic products. Mr. Wei has over 40 years’ engineering experience

in the electro-acoustic industry. Mr. Wei holds a Master’s degree from Nanjing University of the PRC in August 1964

with emphasis on acoustics. He was also a lecturer for acoustics in the Shandong College of Oceanography in July

1982 and a visiting research scholar in physics (acoustics) at the Howard University of the US in April 1981.

Mr. Chan Yick Fung, aged 40, joined the Group as the director of the research and development department in April

2005. Mr. Chan received a Bachelor of Science degree in electronic engineering from the City University (formerly

known as City Polytechnic) of Hong Kong in November 1989, and a Postgraduate Certificate in Business Administration

in December 1996 and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the City University of Hong Kong in

November 2003.

Ms. Cheng Ching Man, aged 39, joined the Group in April 2007 as Chief Financial Officer. She is responsible for the

overall financial control, treasury management, accounting and administration functions of the Group. She is a

graduate of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has over 18 years of

experience in auditing, accounting and corporate financial management.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Ms. Yu Pik Yuk, Rebecca, aged 41, joined the Group in Oct 2005 and is the Financial Controller, Company Secretary

and Qualified Accountant of Company. She has over 10 years of experience in the field of finance and accounting.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yu had worked in Kerry Beverage Services Ltd. for approximately 8 years for operations

accounting. Ms. Yu is also an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a

fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present to the shareholders their report together with

the audited financial statements of Shinhint Acoustic Link Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results for the year ended 31st December, 2006 are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 31.

An interim dividend of HK cents 1.5 per share was paid during the year. The directors has recommended the payment

of a final dividend of HK cents 3.8 in cash per share, to the shareholders on the register of members on 25th May,

2007, amounting to a total of HK cents 5.3 in cash per share for the year.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity on page 34.

MATERIAL INVESTMENT AND ACQUISITION
During the reporting period, the Group had no significant investment and acquisition activities.

BANK BORROWINGS
Details of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31st December, 2006 are set out in Notes 26 to the financial

statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year and details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment

are set out in note 14 to the accompanying financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to the financial

statements. During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company’s shares.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wah Keung (Chairman)

Mr. Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest

Mr. Wang Dong

Mr. Feng Tian (resigned on 6th March 2006)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Ming, Joseph

Dr. Lam King Sun, Frankie

Mr. Goh Gen Cheung

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Cheung Wah Keung and Mr. Lam King

Sun, Frankie will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company commencing from the date of employment

for a term of three years. Executive Directors may be terminated by not less than three months prior notice in

writing served by either party on the other.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
At 31st December, 2006, the interests of the directors and chief executives in the shares of the Company, underlying

shares in respect of equity derivatives and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which were notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions

which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to

section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Nature of interest and Total number of Approximate

Name of Director capacity shares  ordinary shares percentage of interest

Cheung Wah Keung Interest in a controlled corporation (Note) 152,655,473 50.32%

Beneficial owner 6,056,000 1.99%

Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest Beneficial owner 5,298,302 1.75%

Note: 152,655,473 shares were held by Pro-Partner Developments Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Cheung Wah Keung.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)
All the interests stated above represented long positions. As at 31st December, 2006, no directors and chief executive

had short positions recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 25th June, 2005, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the

shareholders of the Company, under which, options the Company may grant to any eligible participants (including

any executive directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions

stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31st December, 2006, no options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

On at 11th May, 2005, an option to subscribe for 3,397,500 shares in the Company at an exercise price equal to the

par value of HK$0.01 per share was granted to a director of the Company as pre-IPO Share Option as follows:

Outstanding

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled at Subscription

Date of at 1st January, during the during the during the during the 31st December, Option price per

Director grant 2006 year  year year   year 2006 period share

Ip Wai Cheong, 11th May, 3,397,500 – 3,397,500 – – – 14th January, HK$0.01

Ernest 2005 2006 to 31st

December, 2007
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31st December, 2006, as far as known to the directors, the following persons (other than the directors or chief

executives of the Company) who had 5% or more interests in the shares or underlying shares in respect of equity

derivatives of the Company that would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3

of Part XV of the SFO and were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336

of the SFO were as follows:

Total Approximate

Capacity/Nature interests in percentage

Name of interests shares of interests

Pro Partner Developments Limited Beneficial owner 152,655,473 50.32%

Lucky Merit Holdings Limited(2) Beneficial owner 16,500,000 5.44%

New World Development Company Limited(2) Corporate 16,500,000 5.44%

S.I. Technology Venture Capital Limited(3) Beneficial owner 16,500,000 5.44%

Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Corporate 16,500,000 5.44%

Company Limited(3)

Notes:

1: Interests in shares stated above represent long positions.

2: Lucky Merit Holdings Limited, which directly holds 16,500,000 shares in the Company, is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of New World Development Company Limited (“NWDCL”), shares of which are listed on the Main Board. Therefore, NWDCL
is deemed to be interested in those 16,500,000 shares.

3: S.I. Technology Venture Capital Limited, which directly holds 16,500,000 shares in the Company, is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL”) shares of which are listed on the Main Boards Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Holdings) Company Limited (“SIIC“) indirectly controls more than one-third of the voting power of SIHL,
therefore SIIC is deemed to be interested in those 16,500,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, no other person had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of

Part XV of the SFO as at 31st December, 2006.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Other than as disclosed under the section “Connected Transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the

Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company

had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to the supply agreement dated 25th June, 2005 between Crown Million Industries (International) Limited

(“CMI”), and Dongguan Guanman Acoustic Company Limited. (“DGAC”), a connected person of the Company by

virtue of being ultimately controlled by Mr. Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest, an Executive Director of the Company, DGAC had

agreed to supply CMI with speakers for automobile and plasma television (“the Products”) for a term of two years

commencing on 1st January, 2005 until 31st December, 2006 in accordance with the terms of the sale and purchase

contracts to be entered into between the parties from time to time during the term of the agreement. The continuing

connected transaction contemplated under this supply agreement is subject to reporting, announcement and

independent shareholders approval requirements, but waiver from strict compliance therewith (except the reporting

requirement) has been obtained from the Stock Exchange. For the year ended 31st December, 2005, the total sales

by DGAC to CMI amounted to HK$72,982,000 (2005: 87,483,000), which did not exceed the annual cap of HK$90,000,000

prescribed for the year ended 31st December, 2006.

The Independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and

confirmed that these transactions have been entered into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b) on normal commercial terms that are fair and reasonable; and

c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

For further details regarding the above continuing connected transactions, please refer to note 36 to the financial

statements.

COMPETING INTEREST
None of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a business,

which competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the Group is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of the individuals’

merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company are decided by the Remuneration

Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.
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REMUNERATION POLICY (Continued)
The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of

the Scheme are set out under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
At the 2005 annual general meeting of the Company held on 25th May, 2006, an ordinary resolution was passed to

grant a general mandate to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to purchase Shares up to a maximum

of 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing the resolution.

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during

the year ended 31st December, 2006.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles although there are no restrictions

against such rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31st December, 2006, the Group had a total of about 4,300 employees in Hong Kong and the PRC Employees’

cost (excluding directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$79,670,000 (2005: HK$65,942,000). The Group

ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive according to market trend and its employees are

rewarded on a performance related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are

as follows:

Sales

– the largest customer 69.70%

– five largest customers combined 95.50%

Purchases

– the largest supplier 8.6%

– five largest suppliers combined 25.01%

At 31st December, 2006, Mr. Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest had a benefit interest in one of the five largest suppliers of the

Group. All transaction between the Group and the suppliers concerned were carried out on normal commercial

terms.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)
Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their associate or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors

own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers noted

above.

PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules,

basing on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Details of post balance sheet event are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Wah Keung

Chairman

26th April, 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF SHINHINT ACOUSTIC LINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

成謙聲匯控股有限公司

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shinhint Acoustic Link Holdings Limited (the “Company”)

and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 31 to 75, which comprise the consolidated

balance sheet as at 31st December, 2006, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of

changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these

consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the

preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to

report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong

Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as

to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation

and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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OPINION
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as

at 31st December, 2006 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

26th April, 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

2006 2005

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue 5 1,174,157 1,016,198

Cost of sales (1,022,255) (875,856)

Gross profit 151,902 140,342

Other income 6 2,653 1,958

Selling and distribution costs (22,434) (18,373)

Administrative expenses (67,982) (65,543)

Share of result of an associate 16 – (2,900)

Loss on disposal of an associate 16 (3,944) –

Finance costs 7 (2,487) (2,014)

Profit before taxation 8 57,708 53,470

Taxation 9 (7,379) (8,029)

Profit for the year 50,329 45,441

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 50,329 45,432

Minority interests – 9

50,329 45,441

Dividends 11 13,046 7,500

Earnings per share 12

Basic (HK dollar) 0.17 0.17

Diluted (HK dollar) 0.17 0.17
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31st December, 2006

2006 2005

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 14 57,784 57,085

Investment in an associate 16 – 5,874

Club membership 17 978 978

Pledged bank deposits 20 3,291 3,116

62,053 67,053

Current Assets

Inventories 18 135,363 173,492

Trade debtors, deposits and prepayments 19 359,564 335,261

Pledged bank deposits 20 1,161 6,761

Bank balances and cash 21 117,013 71,736

613,101 587,250

Current Liabilities

Trade creditors and accrued charges 22 337,801 354,262

Bills payable 23 9,850 2,752

Amount due to a related company 24 14,467 16,179

Tax liabilities 3,949 5,290

Obligations under finance leases

– due within one year 25 110 1,345

Bank borrowings – due within one year 26 38,241 41,503

404,418 421,331

Net Current Assets 208,683 165,919

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 270,736 232,972
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31st December, 2006

2006 2005

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital and Reserves

Share capital 27 3,034 3,000

Reserves 259,353 221,809

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 262,387 224,809

Minority interests – –

Total Equity 262,387 224,809

Non-current Liabilities

Obligations under finance leases – due after one year 25 – 108

Bank borrowings – due after one year 26 5,206 4,454

Deferred tax liabilities 29 3,143 3,601

8,349 8,163

270,736 232,972

The consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 75 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 26th April, 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Wah Keung Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

Total equity
attributable

Share to equity
Share Share Special Exchange option Retained holders of Minority

capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits the parent interests Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st January, 2005 5,000 – – 185 – 104,418 109,603 980 110,583

Exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign
operations recognised
directly in equity – – – 110 – – 110 (17 ) 93

Profit for the year – – – – – 45,432 45,432 9 45,441

Total recognised income
and expense for the year – – – 110 – 45,432 45,542 (8 ) 45,534

Effect on capital structure
of the group reorganisation (4,950 ) – 4,950 – – – – – –

Issue of shares at premium 759 82,641 – – – – 83,400 – 83,400
Issue of shares on capitalisation

of share premium account 2,191 (2,191 ) – – – – – – –
Recognition of equity-settled

share based payment – – – – 1,919 – 1,919 – 1,919
Transaction costs attributable

to issue of new shares – (8,155 ) – – – – (8,155 ) – (8,155 )
Interim dividend declared

in respect of 2005 – – – – – (7,500 ) (7,500 ) – (7,500 )
Dividends paid to minority

interests – – – – – – – (972 ) (972 )

At 31st December, 2005 3,000 72,295 4,950 295 1,919 142,350 224,809 – 224,809
Exchange differences arising

on translation of foreign
operations recognised
directly in equity – – – 155 – – 155 – 155

Profit for the year – – – – – 50,329 50,329 – 50,329

Total recognised income for the year – – – 155 – 50,329 50,484 – 50,484

Exercise of share options 34 2,025 – – (2,025 ) – 34 – 34
Recognition of equity-settled

share based payment – – – – 106 – 106 – 106
Final dividend paid in respect

of 2005 – – – – – (8,495 ) (8,495 ) – (8,495 )
Interim dividend declared in

respect of 2006 – – – – – (4,551 ) (4,551 ) – (4,551 )

At 31st December, 2006 3,034 74,320 4,950 450 – 179,633 262,387 – 262,387

Note:

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the entire issued share capital of Shinhint Industries
Limited and the aggregate nominal value of the shares issued by the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation (see Note 1).
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Operating activities

Profit before taxation 57,708 53,470

Adjustments for:

Finance costs 2,487 2,014

Shares issue expenses – 5,570

Share-based payment expense 106 1,919

Share of result of an associate – 2,900

Impairment loss on goodwill – 70

Depreciation 16,018 13,374

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 105 –

Interest income (1,664) (935)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 401 218

Loss on disposal of investment properties – 74

Loss on disposal of an associate 3,944 –

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 79,105 78,674

Decrease (increase) in inventories 38,129 (128,319)

Increase in trade debtors, deposits and prepayments (24,408) (198,929)

Decrease in amounts due from related companies – 4

(Decrease) increase in trade creditors and accrued charges (16,462) 235,140

Increase (decrease) in bills payable 7,098 (6,594)

(Decrease) increase in amount due to a related company (1,712) 16,179

Decrease in amount due to a joint venture partner – (2,331)

Cash generated from (used in) operations 81,750 (6,176)

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (9,178) (4,615)

Overseas tax refunded – 398

Net cash from (used in) operating activities 72,572 (10,393)

Investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (17,120) (19,552)

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 8

Proceeds on disposal of investment properties – 4,126

Proceeds on disposal of an associate 1,930 –

Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits 5,425 (7,824)

Interest received 1,664 935

Net cash used in investing activities (8,099) (22,307)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Financing activities

Repayment of obligations under finance leases (1,343) (2,532)

Proceeds on issue of shares 34 83,400

Shares issue expenses – (13,725)

New bank borrowings raised 39,000 24,298

Repayment of bank borrowings (41,510) (9,546)

Dividends paid (13,045) (24,500)

Dividends paid to minority interests – (972)

Interest paid (2,487) (2,014)

Net cash (used in) from financing activities (19,351) 54,409

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45,122 21,709

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 155 (72)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 71,736 50,099

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,

representing bank balances and cash 117,013 71,736
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under

the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares

of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The

Company’s parent and ultimate holding company is Pro Partner Developments Limited (incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands). The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business of the

Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the annual report.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of the Company

and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) in preparation for the listing of the

Company’s shares on SEHK, the Company issued shares in exchange for the entire issued share capital of

Shinhint Industries Limited and thereby became the holding company of the Group on 11th May, 2005. Details

of the Group Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus dated 30th June, 2005 issued by the Company. The

shares of the Company have been listed on SEHK with effect from 14th July, 2005.

The Group resulting from the above mentioned reorganisation is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly,

the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2005 had been prepared

using the principles of merger accounting as if the group structure under the group reorganisation had been

in existence throughout the year ended 31st December, 2005.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries

are set out in note 35.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new standards, amendments and

interpretations (“new HKFRSs”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the

“HKICPA”), which are either effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st December, 2005 or 1st

January, 2006. The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and financial

position for the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior

period adjustment has been required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)
The Group has not early applied the following new standards, amendment or interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these standards,

amendment or interpretations will have no material financial impact on the results of operation and financial

position of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures1

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures1

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments2

HK(IFRIC)-INT 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies3

HK(IFRIC)-INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 24

HK(IFRIC)-INT 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives5

HK(IFRIC)-INT 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment6

HK(IFRIC)-INT 11 HKFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions7

HK(IFRIC)-INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements8

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2007
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2006
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May, 2006
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2006
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st November, 2006
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2007
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2008

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable

disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on SEHK and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern

the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income

statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s

equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the

original business combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.

Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated

against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able

to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts

receivable for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of returns and allowances.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding

and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future

cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statement items of the combining entities

or businesses in which the common control combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date

when the combining entities or businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are consolidated using the existing book values from

the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirers’

interest in the net fair value of acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at

the time of common control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations under common control  (Continued)
The consolidated income statement includes the results of each of the combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented as if the entities or
businesses had been combined at the previous balance sheet date or when they first came under common
control, whichever is shorter.

Business combinations other than common control
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st January, 2005
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the agreement date is before 1st January, 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Impairment testing on capitalised goodwill
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised but not yet impaired
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment over their estimated

useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as

owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant leases.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits

are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the

asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)

is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is carried at cost less any identified impairment loss and is

tested for impairment annually.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor

an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements

using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in

the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the

net assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an

associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of

further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that

the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the consolidated balance sheet when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities

are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue

of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,

as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified as loans and receivables. The accounting policies adopted

in respect of loans and receivables are set out below.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not

quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables

(including trade debtors, deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost

using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised

in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference

between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at

the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase

in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was

recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is

reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified according to the substance

of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after

deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade creditors and accrued charges, bills payable, amount due to a related

company and bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial

assets are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount of

the financial asset and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.



43Shinhint Acoustic Link Holdings Limited  •      Annual Report 2006

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments  (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet (i.e. when the obligation

specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired). The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit

or loss.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether

there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an

asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its

recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the

revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in

prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development expenditure is recognised only if it is

anticipated that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be recovered through future

commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the

project. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is

charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-

out method.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of

the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the

lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are

apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate

of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing  (Continued)

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of

the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are

recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported

in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or

deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s

liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the

consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,

and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised

for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such

assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial

recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled

or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items

charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than

the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the

currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges

prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in

foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items

that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,

are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies(Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s

foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at

the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at

the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in

which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,

if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the

grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in

equity (share option reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to

ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates, if any is recognised in profit or loss, with a

corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still

not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred

to retained profits.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in the consolidated income statement in

the period in which they are incurred.



46 Shinhint Acoustic Link Holdings Limited  •      Annual Report 2006

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade debtors, deposits, pledged bank deposits,

bank balances, trade creditors and accrued charges, bills payable, amount due to a related company

and bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The

risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are

set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk reflects the risk that the Group might expose through the impact of rate changes on

interest-bearing financial assets. Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly balances with banks

which are all short term in nature. Interest-bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans which

are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The management

will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to perform

their obligations as at 31st December, 2006 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is

the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debtors. The Group is exposed to

concentration of credit risk as a substantial portion of its trade debtors is generated from a limited

number of customers. During the year, the top five customers of the Group accounted for about 95%

of the Group’s trade debtors. The Group manages its credit risk by closely monitoring the granting of

credit period. The Group also reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debtor at each

balance sheet date to ensure that adequate allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this

regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparts are banks with high credit-ratings.

b. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally

accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current

market transactions.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at

amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue

Revenue represents the net amount received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside customers,

less returns and allowances, during the year.

Business segments

The Group is currently organised into five revenue streams – sale of communication products, multi-media

products, entertainment products, audio products and others. These revenue streams are the basis on which

the Group reports its primary segment information.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

2006

Communication Multimedia Entertainment Audio

products products products products Others Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

REVENUE

External sales 169,420 515,588 357,877 40,917 90,355 1,174,157

RESULT

Segment result 14,007 27,979 19,498 1,136 (771 ) 61,849

Unallocated income 2,653

Unallocated corporate expenses (363 )

Loss on disposal of an associate – – – (3,944 ) – (3,944 )

Finance costs (2,487 )

Profit before taxation 57,708

Taxation (7,379 )

Profit for the year 50,329
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)

Balance sheet

Communication Multimedia Entertainment Audio

products products products products Others Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS

Segment assets 79,437 234,094 166,740 22,133 49,379 551,783

Unallocated corporate assets 123,371

Consolidated total assets 675,154

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities 51,936 152,226 108,902 14,789 33,042 360,895

Unallocated corporate liabilities 51,872

Consolidated total liabilities 412,767

Other information

Communication Multimedia Entertainment Audio

products products products products Others Unallocated Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital expenditure 2,367 7,202 4,999 572 1,262 718 17,120

Depreciation 2,290 6,970 4,838 553 1,222 145 16,018

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 58 176 122 14 31 – 401

Allowance for bad and

doubtful debts 15 46 32 4 8 – 105
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)

2005

Communication Multimedia Entertainment Audio

products products products products Others Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

REVENUE

External sales 162,247 440,769 289,150 46,548 77,484 1,016,198

RESULT

Segment result 11,385 24,464 18,882 1,215 2,850 58,796

Unallocated income 1,619

Unallocated corporate expenses (2,031 )

Finance costs (2,014 )

Share of result of an associate – – – (2,900 ) – (2,900 )

Profit before taxation 53,470

Taxation (8,029 )

Profit for the year 45,441

Balance sheet

Communication Multimedia Entertainment Audio

products products products products Others Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS

Segment assets 93,352 253,605 154,665 26,782 30,414 558,818

Investment in an associate – – – 5,874 – 5,874

Unallocated corporate assets 89,611

Consolidated total assets 654,303

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities 62,540 169,899 103,301 17,942 19,995 373,677

Unallocated corporate liabilities 55,817

Consolidated total liabilities 429,494
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)

Other information

Communication Multimedia Entertainment Audio

products products products products Others Unallocated Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital expenditure 2,634 7,279 4,009 795 447 4,388 19,552

Depreciation 1,889 5,221 2,938 570 396 2,360 13,374

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 38 104 58 11 7 – 218

Loss on disposal of

investment properties – – – – – 74 74

Impairment loss on goodwill 12 34 19 3 2 – 70

Geographical segments

Segment information regarding the Group’s sales by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the

goods is presented below:

Revenue by

geographical market

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

The People’s Republic of China 68,472 100,294

Other Asia regions 78,361 64,598

North America 490,772 434,479

Europe 536,552 416,827

1,174,157 1,016,198
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical segments (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to property, plant and

equipment, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of Additions to property

segment assets plant and equipment

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

The People’s Republic of China 241,149 278,786 17,072 19,522

Other Asia regions 2,179 55,389 48 –

North America 15,375 108,662 – –

Europe 293,080 115,981 – –

551,783 558,818 17,120 19,522

6. OTHER INCOME

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Bank interest income 1,664 935

Sundry income 989 1,023

2,653 1,958

7. FINANCE COSTS

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 43 130

Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable within five years 2,444 1,884

2,487 2,014
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

Current year 1,300 1,160

Overprovision in prior years (1) (10)

1,299 1,150

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 1,022,255 875,856

Depreciation

Owned assets 15,519 12,875

Assets held under finance leases 499 499

16,018 13,374

Net exchange loss 2,181 2,415

Directors’ emoluments (note 10) 4,454 5,572

Retirement benefit scheme contributions (note 32) 1,361 1,525

Other staff costs 78,309 64,417

Total staff costs 84,124 71,514

Operating lease rentals in respect of rented premises 1,246 322

Other rental expenses 8,194 7,777

Research and development costs 1,749 3,347

Shares issue expenses – 5,570

Impairment loss on goodwill (included in administrative expenses) – 70

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 401 218

Loss on disposal of investment properties – 74

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 105 –
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9. TAXATION

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

The charge comprises:

Current taxation

Hong Kong Profits Tax 7,990 7,601

Other jurisdictions 9 –

7,999 7,601

Overprovision in respect of prior years

Hong Kong Profits Tax (162) (104)

Other regions in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) – (88)

(162) (192)

Deferred taxation (note 29)

Current year (458) 620

7,379 8,029

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2005:17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are exempted from PRC

Enterprise Income Tax and the local income tax for two years starting from their first profit-making year

followed by a full exemption from the local income tax and a 50% relief from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for

the next three years (“Tax Holiday”). No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax and the local income tax

has been made in the consolidated financial statements as all of the PRC subsidiaries either have no

assessable profits arising in the PRC or were exempted from PRC Enterprise Income Tax and the local

income tax during the year.

A subsidiary is engaged in typical processing arrangement with a PRC processing factory during the year. As

50% of its assessable profits were attributable to its manufacturing operation in PRC, the subsidiary filed

Hong Kong Profits Tax at 50:50 basis. Accordingly, 50% of its assessable profits were offshore in nature and

non-taxable.
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9. TAXATION (Continued)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the consolidated income statement

as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit before taxation 57,708 53,470

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 17.5% 10,099 9,357

Tax effect of share of results of an associate – 508

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 1,333 1,798

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (283) (147)

Overprovision in respect of prior years (162) (192)

Tax effect of deferred tax assets not recognised 21 19

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised – 82

Effect of tax relief granted to a subsidiary (3,394) (3,838)

Others (235) 442

Taxation for the year 7,379 8,029

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2005: seven) directors were as follows:

Cheung Ip Wai Goh Lai Lam

Wah Cheong, Wang Feng Gen Ming, King Sun,

Keung Ernest Dong Tian Cheung Joseph Frankie Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2006

Fees – – – – 240 240 240 720

Other emoluments

Salaries and other benefits 1,780 1,188 288 90 – – – 3,346

Bonus (note) 139 93 23 – – – – 255

Retirement benefit scheme

contributions 12 12 – 3 – – – 27

Share-based payments – 106 – – – – – 106

1,931 1,399 311 93 240 240 240 4,454
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors (Continued)

Cheung Ip Wai Goh Lai Lam

Wah Cheong, Wang Feng Gen Ming, King Sun,

Keung Ernest Dong Tian Cheung Joseph Frankie Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2005

Fees – – – – 123 123 123 369

Other emoluments

Salaries and other benefits 1,625 1,145 197 264 – – – 3,231

Bonus (note) – – – – – – – –

Retirement benefit scheme

contributions 12 12 – 29 – – – 53

Share-based payments – 1,919 – – – – – 1,919

1,637 3,076 197 293 123 123 123 5,572

Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the financial performance of
the Group and the performance of the individual director for the two years ended 31st December, 2006
and 31st December, 2005 respectively.

(b) Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, two (2005: two) were executive

directors of the Company whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining

three (2005: three) individuals were as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other benefits 2,337 2,231

Bonus 182 –

Retirement benefits scheme contributions 36 33

2,555 2,264
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Employees (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2006 2005

Number of Number of

employees employees

Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 3

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 –

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest

paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office. None of the directors waived any emoluments during both years.

11. DIVIDENDS

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Dividend recognised as distribution during the year:

Interim – HK1.5 cents per share (2005: HK2.5 cents) 4,551 7,500

Final – HK2.8 cents per share (2005: nil) 8,495 –

13,046 7,500

The final dividend of HK3.8 cents (2005: HK2.8 cents) per share has been proposed by the directors and is

subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

parent is based on the following data:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share

(profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent) 50,329 45,432

2006 2005

’000 ’000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

purposes of basic earnings per share 303,109 259,932

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Share options 285 2,083

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

purposes of diluted earnings per share 303,394 262,015

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
HK$’000

FAIR VALUE

At 1st January, 2005 4,200

Disposal (4,200)

At 31st December, 2005 and 31st December, 2006 –
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
fixtures

Plant and and office Leasehold Motor
machinery Moulds equipment improvement vehicles Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

COST
At 1st January, 2005 61,715 513 13,147 12,741 2,713 90,829
Additions 12,300 – 4,388 2,864 – 19,552
Disposals (392) – (93 ) – – (485)

At 31st December, 2005 73,623 513 17,442 15,605 2,713 109,896
Additions 12,369 91 3,570 1,090 – 17,120
Disposals (760) – (689 ) – – (1,449)

At 31st December, 2006 85,232 604 20,323 16,695 2,713 125,567

DEPRECIATION
At 1st January, 2005 27,024 119 7,332 3,419 1,802 39,696
Provided for the year 7,636 157 2,707 2,650 224 13,374
Eliminated on disposals (184) – (75 ) – – (259)

At 31st December, 2005 34,476 276 9,964 6,069 2,026 52,811
Provided for the year 9,588 177 3,118 2,929 206 16,018
Eliminated on disposals (511) – (535 ) – – (1,046)

At 31st December, 2006 43,553 453 12,547 8,998 2,232 67,783

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December, 2006 41,679 151 7,776 7,697 481 57,784

At 31st December, 2005 39,147 237 7,478 9,536 687 57,085

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum:

Plant and machinery 10% – 20%

Moulds 331/3%

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% – 25%

Leasehold improvements 20%

Motor vehicles 20% – 25%

The carrying value of plant and machinery includes an amount of HK$972,000 (2005: HK$3,490,000) in respect

of assets held under finance leases.
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15. GOODWILL

HK$’000

COST

At 1st January, 2005, 31st December, 2005 and 31st December, 2006 70

IMPAIRMENT

At 1st January, 2005 –

Impairment loss recognised 70

At 31st December, 2005 and 31st December, 2006 70

CARRYING VALUES

At 31st December, 2006 and 31st December, 2005 –

16. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate – 3,860

Share of post-acquisition profits and reserves – 2,014

– 5,874

As at 31st December, 2005, the Group had interest in the following associate:

Proportion of

nominal value of

Form of registered capital Proportion

business Place of held indirectly of voting

Name of associate structure registration by the Company power held Principal activities

Guangzhou Prosonic-Guoguang Sino-foreign PRC 20% 20% Manufacture of wooden

Speaker System Co. Ltd. equity joint speakers box, home

(“GZ Prosonic”) venture theatre and audio

廣州普笙音箱廠有限公司 related products
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16. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associate is set out below:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets – 59,827

Total liabilities – (30,459)

Net assets – 29,368

Group’s share of net assets of an associate – 5,874

Turnover – 150,464

Loss for the year – (14,503)

Group’s share of results of an associate for the year – (2,900)

On 1st January, 2006, the Group disposed of its entire 20% interest in GZ Prosonic for a cash consideration of

HK$1,930,000, resulting in a loss on disposal of HK$3,944,000.

17. CLUB MEMBERSHIP
The club membership represents entrance fees paid to golf clubs held on a long-term basis. It is considered

by the management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life. It will not be amortised until the useful

life is determined to be finite upon reassessment of the useful life annually by the management.

During the year ended 31st December, 2006, the club membership was tested for impairment by comparing

its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. The management of the Group determined that no

impairment loss was charged for the current year.
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18. INVENTORIES

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Raw materials 70,059 100,756

Work in progress 39,582 38,632

Finished goods 25,722 34,104

135,363 173,492

19. TRADE DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
The Group normally allows an average credit period of 30 days to 90 days (2005: 30 days to 75 days) to its

trade customers, and may be further extended to selected customers depending on their trade volume and

settlement with Group.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors at the balance sheet date:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 to 30 days 125,401 178,353

31 to 60 days 146,545 104,817

61 to 90 days 50,105 23,275

91 to 120 days 7,742 1,961

Over 120 days 13,019 5,458

342,812 313,864

Deposits and prepayments 16,752 21,397

359,564 335,261
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20. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits

amounting to HK$1,161,000 (2005: HK$6,761,000) have been pledged to secure short-term bank borrowings

and are therefore classified as current assets. The remaining deposits amounting to HK$3,291,000 (2005:

HK$3,116,000) have been pledged to secure long-term borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current

assets.

The deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 2.9% to 4.125% (2005: 1.1% to 1.8%) per annum. The

pledged bank deposits will be released upon settlement of the relevant bank borrowings.

21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances and cash comprise certain short-term bank deposits at prevailing market interest rates

which ranged from 2.1% to 3.1% (2005: 2.0% to 3.2%) per annum and certain short-term bank deposits

carried fixed interest rates ranging from 2.35% to 3.4% (2005: 2.1% to 4.3%) per annum.

22. TRADE CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES
The following is an aged analysis of the trade creditors at the respective balance sheet dates:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 to 30 days 73,677 121,523

31 to 60 days 82,680 89,356

61 to 90 days 68,145 53,316

91 – 120 days 48,190 38,733

Over 120 days 35,570 26,380

308,262 329,308

Accrued charges 29,539 24,954

337,801 354,262
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23. BILLS PAYABLE
The following is an aged analysis of the bills payable, with maturity date of 90 days (2005: 60 days), at the

respective balance sheet dates:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 to 30 days 1,159 –

31 to 60 days 6,151 2,752

61 to 90 days 2,540 –

9,850 2,752

24. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY
The amount is due to Dongguan Guanman Acoustic Co. Ltd., a company in which Mr. Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest,

a director and shareholder of the Company, has beneficial interest. The amount is of trading nature and is

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of the amount due to a related company at the respective balance sheet

dates:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 to 30 days 11,326 10,231

31 to 60 days 3,141 5,948

14,467 16,179
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25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Minimum Present value of

lease payments minimum lease payments

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Amounts payable under finance leases

Within one year 111 1,388 110 1,345

In more than one year but not more

than two years – 109 – 108

111 1,497 110 1,453

Less: future finance charges (1) (44) – –

Present value of lease obligations 110 1,453 110 1,453

Less: amount due for settlement within

one year shown under current

liabilities (110) (1,345)

Amount due for settlement after one year – 108

The Group has leased certain of its plant and machinery under finance leases. The average lease term is 3

years (2005: 3 years). Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective

contract dates ranging from 1.9% to 4.9% (2005: 1.9% to 4.9%) per annum. No arrangements have been

entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.
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26. BANK BORROWINGS

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Bank loans 43,447 45,957

Secured 34,447 36,957

Unsecured 9,000 9,000

43,447 45,957

The maturity profile of the bank borrowings is as follows:

On demand or within one year 38,241 41,503

More than one year, but not exceeding two years 3,539 4,454

More than two years, but not exceeding five years 1,667 –

43,447 45,957

Less: Amount due within one year shown under current liabilities (38,241) (41,503)

Amount due after one year 5,206 4,454

Bank borrowings comprise:

Effective

interest rate Carrying amount

(Per annum) 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Floating-rate borrowings:

Secured HKD bank loan at HIBOR + 1.925% 7.675% – 19,600

Secured HKD bank loan at cost of fund + 1.25% 5.29% 15,000 10,468

Secured HKD bank loan at Prime – 1% 6.75% 4,447 6,889

Secured HKD bank loan at HIBOR +1% 5.03125% 10,000 –

Secured HKD bank loan at HIBOR + 1% 5.09375% 5,000 –

Unsecured HKD bank loan at Prime – 2.9% 4.85% 9,000 9,000

43,447 45,957

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has undrawn borrowing facilities of HK$52,553,000 (2005:

HK$9,043,000).
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27. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Number

of shares Amount

HK$’000

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each:

Authorised:

On incorporation 38,000,000 380

Increase on 25th June, 2005 462,000,000 4,620

At 31st December, 2005 and 31st December, 2006 500,000,000 5,000

Issued and fully paid:

Allotted and issued at nil paid on 7th February, 2005 1 –

Issue of shares upon the Group Reorganisation 4,999,999 50

Allotted and issued at par on 17th May, 2005 49,995 –

Issue of shares at premium 867,968 9

Issue of shares on capitalisation of share premium account 219,082,037 2,191

Issue of shares upon the placing and public offer 75,000,000 750

At 31st December, 2005 300,000,000 3,000

Exercise of share options 3,397,500 34

At 31st December, 2006 303,397,500 3,034

The following changes in the share capital of the Company took place during the period from 26th January,

2005 (date of incorporation) to 31st December, 2006:

(a) The Company was incorporated on 26th January, 2005 with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000

divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On 7th February, 2005, one share was allotted and

issued at nil paid which was subsequently settled and credited to share capital.

(b) As consideration for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Shinhint Industries Limited

and its subsidiaries, the Company has issued an aggregate of 4,999,999 shares of HK$0.01 each,

credited as fully paid under the Group Reorganisation which took place on 11th May, 2005. The

difference between the nominal value of the entire issued share capital of Shinhint Industries Limited

and the aggregate nominal value of the shares issued has been credited to special reserve.

(c) On 17th May, 2005, 49,995 shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued to a director, Mr. Ip Wai

Cheong, Ernest, at par.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(d) Pursuant to the subscription agreements and the supplemental agreements, 747,828 shares of

HK$0.01 each and 120,140 shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued on 17th May, 2005 and

25th June, 2005 respectively to certain investors, for a total consideration of HK$23,400,000.

(e) On 25th June, 2005, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to

HK$5,000,000 by the creation of an additional 462,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each. The new

shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares.

(f) Conditional on the share premium amount being credited as a result of placing and public offer,

219,082,037 shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company were allotted and issued as fully paid to the

shareholders of the Company whose names appeared on the register of members at the close of

business on 25th June, 2005 in proportion to their respective shareholdings by the capitalisation of an

amount of HK$2,191,000 standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company.

(g) On 14th July, 2005, 75,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued at

HK$0.8 per share for cash through an initial public offering by way of placing and public offer.

(h) On 1st February, 2006, 3,397,500 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued

upon exercise of share options granted to a director of the Company.

The share capital at 1st January, 2005 represented 5,000,000 shares of HK$1 each in the share capital of

Shinhint Industries Limited prior to the Group Reorganization.

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Equity-settled share options scheme

(a) Pursuant to the service agreement between the Company and a director of the Company dated 11th

May, 2005, an option to subscribe for 3,397,500 shares in the Company at an exercise price equals to

par value of HK$0.01 per share (the “Pre-IPO Share Option”) was granted to the director. The Pre-IPO

Share Option, which serves as an incentive for the director who has substantial management and

manufacturing experience in the production of audio speaker system and car speaker system, shall

be exercised during the period from 14th January, 2006 to 31st December, 2007 and shall not be

transferable.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Equity-settled share options scheme (Continued)

(a)  (Continued)

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option as at 11th May, 2005 to subscribe

for the shares in the Company are as follows:

Exercisable Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
period at 1st Granted at 1st Exercised at 31st

Date of Vesting (both dates Exercise January, during January, during December,
Granted to grant period inclusive) price 2005 the year 2006 the year 2006

HK$

Director 11.5.2005 11.5.2005- 14.1.2006- 0.01 – 3,397,500 3,397,500 (3,397,500 ) –
13.1.2006 31.12.2007

Exercisable at the end of the year –

In respect of the share option exercised during the year, the weighed average share price at the date

of exercise is HK86 cents.

The estimated fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Option at the date of grant is HK$2,025,000.

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The inputs into the model

were as follows:

2005

Weighted average share price HK$0.70

Exercise price HK$0.01

Expected volatility 26.1%

Expected life 0.5 year

Risk-free rate 3.8%

Expected dividend yield 10%

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the volatility of share price for other companies,

with shares listed on the SEHK, in the same industry. The expected life used in the model has been

adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise

restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$106,000 for the year ended 31st December, 2006

(2005: HK$1,919,000) in relation to share options granted by the Company.

Because the Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions,

including the volatility of share price, changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect

the fair value estimate.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Equity-settled share options scheme (Continued)

(b) The Company’s share option scheme adopted by the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed

on 25th June, 2005 (the “Scheme”) is for the purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible

employees and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will expire on 13th July, 2015. Under the

Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including

executive directors of the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any persons who have contributed or

will contribute to the Group, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme and any

other schemes is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of

shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit is refreshed,

at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum

aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted

and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not exceed 30%

of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares in

respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed

1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s

shareholders. Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder must

be approved by independent non-executive directors. Where any grant of options to a substantial

shareholder or any independent non-executive director or any of their respective associates would

result in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted

and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in excess

of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date of grant, then the grant must be approved in

advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the date of grant, upon payment of the

consideration specified in the option agreement. An option may be exercised in accordance with the

terms of the Scheme at any time during the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the board

of directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise price is

determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the highest of the closing price

of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average closing price of the share on the SEHK for

the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value.

During the year ended 31st December, 2006, no options have been granted under the Scheme.
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the current

and the prior years:

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

HK$’000

At 1st January, 2005 2,981

Charge to consolidated income statement for the year 620

At 31st December, 2005 3,601

Credit to consolidated income statement for the year (458)

At 31st December, 2006 3,143

At the balance sheet date, the Group had deductible temporary differences of HK$326,000 (2005: HK$209,000).

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be

utilised.

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 713 94

In the second to fifth years inclusive 581 –

1,294 94

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases

are negotiated for an average term of one to three years and rentals are fixed throughout the lease term.
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31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of

plant and equipment contracted for but not

provided in the consolidated financial statements 2,028 2,797

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Prior to 1st December, 2000, the Group operated a defined contribution scheme which is registered under

the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO Scheme”) for its qualifying employees in Hong

Kong. The assets of the scheme were held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of

an independent trustee. Where there were employees who left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the

contributions, the amount of the forfeited contributions would be used to reduce future contributions payable

by the Group.

With effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF

Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident

Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme

are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the

rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to the

MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to

make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the

contributions payable in future years.

Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme

or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1st December,

2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension schemes operated by PRC local

government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of the relevant part of the

payroll of these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group

with respect to the pension schemes is the required contributions under the pension schemes.

The total cost charged to income of HK$1,388,000 (2005: HK$1,578,000) represents contributions payable to

these schemes by the Group. At the balance sheet date, there was no forfeited contributions available to

reduce future contributions in both years.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Apart from the current account with a related company as stated in note 24 above, the Group entered into the

following transactions with a related company during the year:

Name of related company Nature of transactions 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Dongguan Guanman Acoustic Co. Ltd. Trade purchases 72,982 87,483

Trade sales 882 –

Dongguan Guanman Acoustic Co. Ltd. is a company in which Mr. Ip Wai Cheong, Ernest, a director and

shareholder of the Company, has beneficial interest.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other benefits 7,101 6,948

Bonus 546 –

Retirement benefit schemes contributions 99 132

Share-based payment 106 1,919

7,852 8,999

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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34. SUMMARISED BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Investment in a subsidiary – –

Amount due from a subsidiary 178,307 156,405

Dividend receivable 20,000 17,500

Bank balances and cash 873 20,599

Other current assets 244 238

Amount due to a subsidiary – (250)

Other current liabilities (641) (464)

198,783 194,028

Share capital 3,034 3,000

Reserves (note) 195,749 191,028

198,783 194,028

Note:

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders are as follows:

Share
Share Special option Retained

premium reserve reserve profits Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THE COMPANY
On incorporation – – – – –
Profit for the year – – – 16,667 16,667
Issue of shares at premium 82,641 107,647 – – 190,288
Issue of shares on capitalisation

of share premium account (2,191) – – – (2,191)
Recognition of equity-settled

share based payment – – 1,919 – 1,919
Transaction cost attributable

to issue of new shares (8,155) – – – (8,155)
Interim dividend declared in

respect of 2005 – – – (7,500) (7,500)

At 31st December, 2005 72,295 107,647 1,919 9,167 191,028
Profit for the year – – – 17,661 17,661
Exercise of share options 2,025 – (2,025) – –
Recognition of equity-settled

share based payment – – 106 – 106
Final dividend paid in respect of 2005 – – – (8,495) (8,495)
Interim dividend declared in respect of 2006 – – – (4,551) (4,551)

At 31st December, 2006 74,320 107,647 – 13,782 195,749



74 Shinhint Acoustic Link Holdings Limited  •      Annual Report 2006

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2006

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2006 are as follows:

Place of Paid up

Form of incorporation or issued ordinary Proportion of

business establishment/ share capital/ interest held by

Name of subsidiary structure operations registered capital the Company Principal activities

(Note 1)

Shinhint Industries Incorporated Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% Investment holding

Limited and trading of

components of

electronic

appliances

Tai Sing Industrial Incorporated Hong Kong/ US$1 100% Manufacturing of

Company Limited PRC moulds,

headphones and

speakers related

components

A-Kei Cable Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Manufacturing of

cable products

for electronic

appliances, became

inactive during

the year

Crown Million Industries Incorporated Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 100% Investment holding

(International) Limited PRC and trading of home

theatre and

automobiles

speakers system

Shinhint Industrial Incorporated BVI US$1 100% Investment holding

Holdings Limited

(“Shinhint Industrial”)

Dongguan Shinhint Audio Wholly foreign- PRC HK$1,500,000 100% Net yet commence

Technology Limited owned business

東莞成謙音響科技有限公司 enterprise
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note:

1. Other than Shinhint Industrial, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiary had any debt securities subsisting at 31st December, 2006 or at any time during the

year.

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 27th March, 2007, Pro Partner Developments Limited (“Pro Partner”), the controlling shareholder of the

Company entered into a legally binding arrangement with China Development Capital Partnership Master

Fund LP and General Motors Investment Management Corporation (collectively known as the “Purchasers”),

under which Pro Partner agreed to place 27,120,064 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the

“Placing”) at a price of HK$0.75 per share to the Purchasers. The Placing was subject to, amongst others,

Pro Partner to be allotted the same amount of new shares as the Placing shares placed under the Placing

(the “Top-Up Subscription”). The Placing was completed on 28th March, 2007 and the Top-Up Subscription

was completed on 10th April 2007. The net proceed from the Top-Up Subscription (the price per share being

HK$0.7477 reflecting the netting effects of associated transaction costs) received by the Company amounted

to HK$19.99 million, which will be used by the Company for its general working capital requirements.

Simultaneous with the above, a minority shareholder of the Company informed the Company that it had

agreed to sell and the Purchasers had agreed to acquire 14,479,936 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the

Company owned by the minority shareholder at a price of HK$0.75 per share, conditional on the completion

of the Placing. The transaction took place on 28th March, 2007, simultaneously with the Placing.

After the above transactions, each of the Purchasers is interested in 20,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01

each of the Company, representing approximately 6.29% of the Company’s total issued share capital as

enlarged by the Top-Up Subscription.
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Year ended 31st December,

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

RESULTS

Revenue 513,780 620,011 529,946 1,016,198 1,174,157

Profit for the year 25,983 48,772 40,865 45,441 50,329

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 19,718 43,936 40,315 45,432 50,329

Minority interests 6,265 4,836 550 9 –

25,983 48,772 40,865 45,441 50,329

At 31st December,

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets 311,884 333,979 297,398 654,303 675,154

Total liabilities (214,484) (231,236) (188,721) (429,494) (412,767)

Shareholders’ funds 97,400 102,743 108,677 224,809 262,387

Notes:

1. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26th January, 2005 and became the holding company of the
Group with effect from 11th May, 2005 upon the completion of the Group Reorganisation as set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30th June, 2005.

2. The results of the Group for the two years ended 31st December, 2004 and the balance sheets of the Group at 31st
December, 2002, 31st December, 2003 and 31st December, 2004 have been prepared on a merger basis and are extracted
from the Company’s prospectus dated 30th June, 2005.

3. The results of the Group for the two years ended 31st December, 2006 and the balance sheets of the Group at 31st
December, 2005 and 31st December, 2006 have been extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group as set out on pages 3 to 5 respectively.




